
  

  

 
23 December 2021 
 
 
Attention:  

 
Senate Select Committee on Job Security 
Department of the Senate 
 
  

   
  
 
 

 
 
Senate Select Committee on Job Security, Questions on notice - Public Hearing, 8 December 
2021, Canberra 
 
I refer to Spotless’s appearance before the committee on Wednesday, 8 December 2021. 
 
In accordance with your written request dated 14 December 2021, Spotless provides the following 
responses to questions taken on notice at the public hearing: 
 
Question 1 from Senator Grogan (referred to on page 17 of the Hansard transcript) 
 
The document tabled to the committee by Senator Sheldon titled ‘RE: Change in Terms of 
Employment Letter’ dated 29 October 2020 (Contract Variation) does not have the effect contended 
by Senator Grogan. Specifically, it does not evince that Spotless moved the subject employee (whose 
name is redacted) from permanent employment onto a maximum term contract. Further, Spotless 
rejects the assertion that the Contract Variation had the effect of reducing the subject employee’s 
terms and conditions or that it diminished her job security. 
 
Spotless has been able to identify that the Contract Variation was issued to a cleaner who is engaged 
by Spotless to service its commercial contract with the Department of Defence (DoD) delivering Estate 
Maintenance and Operation Services (EMOS). A copy of the employee’s initial contract of employment 
(with name redacted) is enclosed for the committee’s records (Initial Contract). The terms of the 
Initial Contract show that the subject employee was offered employment with Spotless on a maximum 
term basis with the term of her employment linked to Spotless’s EMOS contract with the DoD.  The 
Contract Variation merely had the effect of extending the term of the Initial Contract in line with the 
contract extension that Spotless was awarded by the DoD. As is clear from the terms of the Contract 
Variation, all other terms and conditions of the subject employee’s employment remained unchanged.  
 
Spotless refutes any suggestions that the effect of the Contract Variation was not explained to the 
subject employee. Spotless wrote to employees engaged to service the EMOS contract notifying them 
that the DoD had awarded Spotless a contract extension. Further, it expressed an intent to offer 
contract extensions to employees engaged on fixed term arrangements to extend the term of their 
employment in line with the new term of Spotless’s commercial contract. A copy of that communication 
(with personal and commercially sensitive information redacted) is enclosed for the committee’s 
records. Spotless also verbally communicated these changes through ‘town hall’ style meetings and 
managers were made available to answer any questions that employees had about the extension to 
Spotless’s commercial contract or their employment. 
 
Question 2 from Senator Small (referred to on page 18 of the Hansard transcript) 
 
Further to the evidence given by my colleague Grant Robinson at the hearing on 8 December 2021, 
Spotless confirms that a total of 822 employees have converted from casual to full time or part time 
employment in the calendar year 2021. In relation to the specific questions raised by Senator Small, 
Spotless confirms that 515 offers were made to casual employees who were assessed as meeting the 
requirements to convert full time or part time employment in accordance with the casual conversion 



  

  

provisions in the National Employment Standards (NES). As a percentage of Spotless’s casual 
workforce, 4.6% of employees were made an offer to convert from casual to full time or part time 
employment under the NES process and 68% of employees who were offered conversion accepted 
that offer.  
 
Question 3 from Senator Sheldon (referred to on page 19 of the Hansard transcript) 
 
Spotless refers to and repeats the answer given to question 1 and adds that it is common practice for 
Spotless to offer contract extensions to employees engaged on maximum term contracts in 
circumstances where the commercial contract they are engaged to service is extended by Spotless’s 
client.   
 
Question 4 from Senator Sheldon (referred to on page 21 of the Hansard transcript) 
 
In the calendar year 2021, 33 employees (or .17% of Spotless’s workforce) accepted offers to move 
from ongoing contracts to maximum term contracts of employment. The reason for these moves 
included changing classifications, changing hours, moving into new roles and secondments.  
 
Please contact me if you have any questions.  

Yours sincerely,  
Anthony Jukes 
General Manager, People and Culture 
Facilities and Asset Services 
























